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DESCRIBE THE FPRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

New Castle lies in the Craig Creek Valley at the confluence of Craig

and John's Creeks secluded in the mountains of western Virginia., Many of
o

the buildings, both commercial and residential,date from the eariy twentieth
century, and these serve as both a buffer and a foil to the central core, ox
historic district.

The focal point of New Castle district is Craig County Courthouse,
located in a shady yard at the corner of Court and Main streets. The court-
house is a temple-form structure with shallow gable roof, a two-story tetra-
style Greek Doric portico and wooden hexagonal cupola., Low two-story wings
frame the building's central portion. Theredbrick walls are laid in regulaz
Flemish bond on the facade and the north wing, with five-course American bond
on the less public sides. Queen closers are employed at the salient corners),
Two Doric pilasters flank the main section, and a2 simple Doric entablature
is employed on both wings and central block. The first and second level
windows on the facade are united in a single composition by the use of a
connecting panel and surrounding symmetrically molded trim with corner blocksg,
Other windows are double-hung and have eight-over-eight sash. The doorway,
bearing some Asher Benjamin influences, consists of a Deric entablature,
supported by two pilasters, each with an engaged half-round in the center,
framing double doors. The doors have large rectangular glass panes, which
probably are latexr additions, Above is a diamond panel instead of a transom)
A smaller diamond panel forms part of the blocking course above the entablatyr

- The courtroom is on the second floor of the building with the Judge's
bench located over the fronit entrance. Rectangular panels ornament the bench
and the windows have symmetrical tyrim, The room is entered from the north-
west by a stailrwell opening into the room, The turned balusters around the
stairwell bear the reputed saber slashes of the Federal soldiers.

Novthwast of the courthouse is the sheriff's house and old jail. The
nearly square three-bay building has brick walls laid in Flemish bond with
queen closers at the corners of the northeast facade. Seven~course American
is used on the vemaining sides. The shallow hipped roof is suxrounded by a
wooden box cornice and a stucggoed frieze. The double~hung windows have six~
over-six sash and are encivcled by plain tvim with cormer blocks. Several
pairs of the wooden louvered shutters remain on the building. TIron bars
form a cross pattern in windows on the upper floor, which once housed the
jail, The doorway consists of plain trim with corner blocks surrounding a
rectangular transom and simple door. A later shed roof porch shelters the
first floor. A small cinder block addition adjoins the original structure
on the northwest, and a modern brick jail building stands just southeast of
the house,

The three~story Central Hotel is across Court Street, north of the
courthouse. The building is ell-shaped, and measures forty feet across the
southeast front and fifty feet across the ell to the northwest. The five-ba;
ell is a later addition as is the third story. The lower two stories of the
front section are Flemish bond, the upper story is seven-course American
bond. The walls of the ell are laid in irregular American bomnd. The windows
are double-hung with varying sash of six-over-six and early-twentieth~century
two-over~two sash. The windows and doors are surrounded by plain trim with
corner blocks. The lower windows on the main section have molded sills; the
remaining sills are square. The doorways have rectangular transoms; some of
the doors are paneled, others have glass lights. A two-story shed porch run
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length of the ell and facade and is supported by brick piers. Supporting
orch roof are square wooden piers that have a molding at the level of the
trade, The balustrade between each pair of piers consists of a set of
zontal vails flanked by two sets of vertical rails. The chimneys ave
ior-end and have brick stacks.

The First National Bank building dates from the late-nineteenth century
and 1s located at the southwest corner of Court and Main Streets. The building
hag brick walls laid in five~course American bond with the header course
alternating header and stretchar, Brick pilasters bresak the fenestration., The
Main Street facade has a heavy Eastlake bracketed cornice, but the Court Street
side has a stepped parapet. Original tall double-hung windows have two-over-tw
sash and are surmounted by segmental arches of a triple row of headers., The
doorway has a similar segmental arch. The western lower bay on Main Street has
been converted into a modern store front.

The Layman Insurance Agency on Main Street is a small three-bay brick
structure built at the same period as the bank. Like the bank, the brick walls
gre laid in American bond with Flemish variation. Two courses of mousetooth
brick accent the facade near the cornice, The hipped roof is surrounded by a
box cornice with crown and bed moldings., Doors and windows are covered by
segmental arches consisting of a double course of headers. Over the windows
these awches are further covered by a corbelled course of headers simulating a
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iers and two similar pilasters. A simple sawn balustrade encloses the sides.
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hoodstone. A one-bay porch shelters the entrance and is supported by two wooden
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Craig County Courthouse and adjacent buildings form an unusually
complete ante~bellum county seat complex for western Virginia. Surviving

in a picturesque grouping are an impressive Greek Revival courthouse, sheriff's

house and hotel., Completing the scene are two late-nineteenth century
structures, the Layman Insurance Agency and the First National Bank.

The courthouse, the sheriff's house and the hotel were all begun in
1851 when New Castle became the county seat of Craig County. The three-
part courthouse, one of Virginia's distinguished group of Greek Revival
court buildings, is modelled on the Botetourt County Courthouse in
Fincastle, (burned, 1970) which was regarded as one of the finest in the

area. The Craig County Courthouse is complimented by the contemporary hotel

and the sheriff's house, all of which are faced in fine Flemish-bond brickic
As was often the case in western Virginia, the group of court relateg
buildings attracted enterprise and became the nucleus of a commercial centes
for the county. The association of local government with a tavern, now the
hotel, is typical of Virginia court towns, where citizens had to travel sub-
stantial distances to reach the county seat. The late-nineteenth century
bank and insurance buildings indicate the growth of business activities in
New Castle. The continuity of material and scale in the structures within
the district link the several styles and achieve a satisfying visual harmons
New Castle became the county seat of Craig County when it was formed
in 1851 from Botetourt, Giles, Monroe, and Roanoke Counties, The new countsy
was named for Robert Craig, Member of the Virginia General Assembly, 1850-57
from Roanoke County. New Castle, originally called New Fincastle, was
established by Governor Dinwiddie in 1756 as a fort for protection against

rk.
1
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marauding Indians on the frontier during the French and Indian War, Confusion

arose between its name and Fincastle in nearby Botetourt County, hence the
name was simplified to New Castle.

Luring the War Between the States both General Averell and General
Hunter stopped in New Castle during their raids on the Valley and western
Virginia. New Castle did not suffer greatly in these raids, but tradition
states that the courthouse suffered depredations in the form of soldiers’
saber cuts in the courtroom balustrade.

New Castle continued to grow after the war, as evidenced by the numbe
of buildings from the late~nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries. The
town was incorporated in 1890 and is today the major community of an essent;
rural county.
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Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission files.

_ CEQGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY @

et QT LESS THAN TEN -
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
MW 37 ° 30 16 » | 80 o 06° 38~ o . " ° , R
ME |37 ° 30 16~ |80 ° 05° 3L-
SE 37 ° 30 10~ 180 ° 06+ 31i-
SW 3723010 » 180 o 06, 38-1
| APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: | 1/2 acres
{L1ST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: CODE | COUNTY conE
STATE CODE | COUNTY: cooe
STATE CcCODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE CODE | COUNTY: coDE

FOR

NAME AND TiTLE:

Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Staff
ORGAMIZATION ) . DATE
Virginia Historic Lendmarks Commission August 1973
STREET AND NUMBER:
221 Governor Street
STATE CODE

CTITY OR TOWN:

Richmond

As the designated Sta‘te. I.iaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
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Junius R. Fishburne, Jr., Director
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The district consists of the following five structures on Court Street:
courthouse, sheriff's house, hotel, the Layman Insurance Agency and the

First National Bank.
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